
Councilors Present: 

Councilors Absent: 

Also Present: 

MINUTES OF THE METRO COUNCIL 

December 17. 1993 
(Special M~ing) 

Council Chamber 

Presiding Officer Judy Wyers. Deputy Presiding Officer Roger Buchanan. Richard 
Devlin. Jim Gardner, Sandi Hansen, Ruth Mcfarland. Suun McLain. Rod Monroe. 
Terry Moore, George Van Bergen and Ed Washington 

Mike Gates and Jon Kvistad 

Executive Officer Rena Cusma 

Presiding Officer Wyers called the special meeting to order at 4:01 p.m 

L Pmcotllion of Oo!jons for [)Qlm& wj!h !he Me1ro Cemer Bujlding 

Executive Officer Cusm.a introduced Don Rocks. Executive Assistant. who d1stnbu1cd and explained Opuons I, :? and 3. 
He said Option I would extend the I~ wi!h AMCO. the corporation that owned Metro Center Building <2000 SW 
First> to allow suhleuing to Metropolitan Family Services <MfS), Paramctrix. Inc., and other prospective tenants and 
extending luses for existing tenan11. He said Option 2 would limit Metro's obligation for the building and associated 
operating costs to the remaining 2.S years leue penod. Under Option 2. he wd empty space would be filled as much 
as possible with replacement tenants and/or other uses. Mr. Rocks said Option 3 would mothball the building. 

The Council and Mr. Rocks discussed the th~ options as presented. 

Councilor Mcfarland noted the Public Employees Reurcmcnt System 1PERS1 had bc:cn intere5led in the building last 
year and would have b«n a large tenant. She asked what happened to PERS as a potential tenant. 

Councilor Monroe noted Option I called for SS00.000 m tenant improvement• and asked what those improvements 
would consist of and whether or not they would improve the huildmg. He asked if Metro would get ns money hack. 
Mr Rocks u1d Metro would not. but that Metro would get monies out of pocket from the owner to complete those 
1mpro\'emcnts. f'ounc1lor Monroe asked if outside legal counsel had been hared yet. 

Gencn1l Coun.el Dan Cooper ~•d acquisu1on of ou11o1de legal counscl wu in progre55 and expected 10 know detaih 
ahout outside legal counsel hy next week. 

Jennifer Simi. D1rec1nr of Fmance & Mana(temcnt Information. d1scuucd Optiom I. 2 and ~ from the finaoc1al 
pcrspc:cuve and offered comparisons of all the options offered The Council and Ms. Sum d1scuucd the fuwKtal 
opttons funher. 

Councilor Dcvlm asked how strong the potential leases were and 1f they contamcd tcrrnmataon clauscs. 

Brad P1hu, CB Commercial. u1d he had contacted all of the building tcn.anu who u1d 11111 wanted 10 rent there 1f 
po1mble. He uid none of the lean con111ncd ~ clau1n. cxcq>t for the IC¥C wnh MFS, which contatncd a non-
appropna11on clau.c Councilor Ocvhn asked where the 7,000 aquarc feet or unoccupied 1pacc wu. Mr. Pihu said that 
space WU ID the SW and NE comcn of the first noor. 

Councilor Moore asked who the cx1111n1 and potential tenants were, and ~·hcthcr they rented on a month-10-month hu1•. 



METRO COUNCIL 
December 17. 1993 
Page 2 

Mr. Roclcs said current and pending tenants included P1eific Marine Fisheries; Moskowi11-" Thomas; MFS: Morrison 
Center; Parametri11. Inc.; Downstream Editorial; Solus Systems; and Newton Bard. 

To Presiding Officer Wycn' question. Mr. Pihas uplaincd Solus Systems would occupy space rent-free until 
improvements were made. He uplained when five-year leases were given. additional incentives such as free rent were 
given. He said hccausc of the condilion of the building. cenain work wa.' needed and enticements had been offered to 
potrntial tenants. 

To Prcs1dinJ Officer Wyers' question. Ms. Sim~ expla1ntd nC"Ct~~ary funds would be borrou·cd from the Unappropriated 
Fund balance. 

Presiding Wyers asked. if Metro would lose money. how ii would pay hack losses on the building. ~h. Sims said losse~ 
would be paid out through the Cost Al10c.111on Program billed 10 other dcpanments so that the fund could be replenished. 

Councilor Moore asked when Metro engaged a commercial broker. Mr. Rocks said that was done nine months ago. 

The Council and Ms. Sims d1M:uncd financial 1s\Uts funher. Ms. Sims said wuh regard to Option 3. the building would 
be empty and Metro would need a cond11ional use permit from the City of Ponland 10 obtain parking income from the 
parkmg 101. She noted the building next door had applied for a condiuonal use permit and hc:en denied. She said figures 
for Option 3 also did not assume any real estate com~ulta1ion fees. She said II assumed tenants would move out and the 
building would be empty for 2 .~ years. Ms. Sims said with regard to Option 2. figures were hard 10 calculate. She said 
wnh the current tenants. mamtainang the building would cost approitimately S700.000 un11l 1hc end of the lc4l5C. 

The Council and Ms. Sims discussed the muci funhcr. Councilor Mcfarland said Option 3 seemed to he the preferable 
opuon Ms Sims and Councilor Monroe diM:uHed costs per square foot. Councilor Monroe said he would ha,·e 
preferred 1ha1 staff provide a range of option' cosu. He u1d the numbers presented 10 the Council at 1h1S meeting were 
worst-case scenarios ellcept an the cue of Option I. 

Exccum·c Officer Cusma said Mr. Saling and Mr. P1has briefed the Regional Fac1h11cs Comm111cc on the issues October 
6. 199]. She said 1f that briefing had poK'd problt'm,, the C'ommmee should have addres~ tho1e mues then 

Counc1lor Mel.am a.sked for a one page format ;11ynopm of all numbers pro\'1dcd at this meeung 10 he pm\'1dcd at the 
nelll C'ounc1l mcc1mtt. 

, 
a.. Rmon from CB Commcma! on Poten11al for L&njn& Metro Cemer Bujldin& l!ncirr Vanous Oouons 

Mr Pih;u reponcd on the building and what 1mprovcmcnt1 he thought 11 would require. 

The Council and Mr. P1has d11eusscd the hu1ldmg. llC«SIW). unprovcmems and tenant 11atu1. Councilor Gardner asked 
1f. Metro pursued Opuon 2. that option would prcvcn11man1s from ncgo11111ng with AMCO andtor prc\·entmg tenants 
from mm·mi m to he Metro tenant• for 2 ~ ycm. He said Ml"lro could make the 1mprovemcn1• and ncaouate wnh the 
bu1ldmg's owner for longer lcucs for the tenant•. 

MR. P1has u1d the owner preferred 11rong. ungle tenant' He uad the only way to mac the owner comfonable w11h 
mult1plc 1enanl5 m the building was 10 gl\·e him add111on&I mne. He u1d 1man11 would require 1mprovemcn11 and that 
Metro would not get 1ha1 money back after 2.S ycAn. He u1d Metro would need five ycan 10 ach1e\e any aam on 
rental ratCi He said he tned to get Ml"lm out of the lease. He wd other broken had cllprcucd interest and the 
bu1ldmg did now have curren1tpro1pec11vc ICIWlli on each of the three Ooon. 



METRO COUNCIL 
December 17. 1993 
Page 3 

The Council and Mr. Pihas discussed options for the building funher. Councilor Hansen discussed the commercial real 
eslate glul. Councilor Monroe asked how often Mr. Pihas had been in contacl wilh Mr. Saling. Mr. Pihas said he 
rcponed 10 Mr Saling by the 15th of each mon1h so 1hat Mr. Saling would have his rcpons in time for the Regional 
Facilities Commilltt mtttmgs. 

Councilor Devlin asked why the owner thought he would find a single tenant after 2.5 years if Metro could 001 find one 
now. He said the owner could also procurt a commercial manager to manage 1he tiu1lding for him. 

Prts1dmg Officer Wyers asked 1f any ot lhe prospcctl\'C 1enants could occupy space at Metro Regional Center tbUll NI-. 
Grandi. Ellc:cuuve Officer Cusma said s1aff would research tha1 option and rcpon hack al lhe Council mcc1ing 
December 2.3. 

Presiding Officer Wyers asked 1.1.·hy fire and safety 1mpro\·rmcn1s were paramount issues now since the building had 
always had multiple 1enan1s. Mr. Pihas said Meiro was conMderc:d the only 1enan1 smcc ll sutile1 lo olhers and said 
codes had changed which required more upgrading anyway. 

Prcs1dmg Offi.:er Wyers asked why s1aff did nol deduc1 1he ellc1M: lall from lease: income or why II wa.\ no1 assumed. 
Ms Sims said h1s1oncally. 1he rems had bc:cn qulle low. 

S1aff distrihu1ed Council Analysl Casey Shon 's December 17 memorandum. "Regional Fac11i11es Commincc: Briefing on 
Me1m Cen1er • Councilor Mcfarland said lhe 1ranscnp1s contained in the memo did 001 indicate a "go-ahead" from lhe 
Commintt 10 s1aff She said the Commlllcc believed 11 would rcce1\·e funher financial mforma11on. and that whalcver 
happened. 1he Commincc and finally. the Council. would apprcl\'e any aclion 1aken. She Hid 1he Comminec was no1 
gi\·en adequa1e ma1enals for decision-making. She Hid she knew 1he prospcc1ive 1enan1s ncgot1a1ed m good fanh. hu1 
said lhe Commincc did 001 know whal was going on because s1aff w:n no1 giving all 1he information. 

Ellccum·e Officer Cusma no1ed she had appoin1ed Douglas Bu1ler. formerly wilh 1he Ponland Oc\·eloprncn1 ('omm1ss1on 
1 PDCI. 10 ac1 a.\ inlenm D1m:1or of Regional Facullles 

Mr P1ha.\ concluded his prcscnlallon. He said he believed 1hat Mr. Salmg had been opera11ng from lhc best of moll\·es. 
1ha1 he. Mr. Pihas. "''ll u unaw·art of lhe pending mucs as 1he Council was. Mr. Pihas said 1he numbers gi\·en a1 this 
meeting would likely end up being lower or in lhe mid-range. He uid financial losic:s would not he u had u they 
looked no"'· He r.11d mo1h balling lhe building would mean ellpenditurc wi1h no hope of earning any back He said 
con11numg lo sublease wu lhe hcs1 option. He nolcd lhere were arhilra(te firms 1ha1 bough• lcucs on a spcculal1\·c basis 
also He said prospcc11ve 1enanu. had hccn as surprised as he wu of lhe new·s of lhcsc c\·enls 

~ Rcoon from General Counsel on S1a1us l•f hn1mg and Po1en11al Lease~ 

Mr Cooper briefed lhe Coum:1I on 1he lcllers of m1em Mgncd wuh prospcc11ve 1cnan1s 10 en1er in10 leaM:' and for Me1ro 
10 bcgm hu1ldmg improvements He said those building 1mprcwemcnu. haJ not bttn done because Mr. Saling did no1 
hnc 1he budge• au1hor11y 10 do 1.0. He said he underslood 1hc building owner was no1 mlercilcd m managing a building 
wuh mult1ple 1cnan11 and was not w1lhng to make any firm comm11mcn11 10 any 1ublcn&nl1 of Metro 10 remain m 1he 
building after 1he Metro leuc cllpircd. He said 1he owner wu w11hng 10 leave 1he laner option open because he did no1 
know wh11 his goals w·ould be. He u1d the owner did noc mind leuc ~-<>vcn. bul v.an1cd to retain 1hc option 10 
1errnma1e. and v.u firm on not paymg for 1enan1 payments unln1 Metro eiucndc:d the luse. Mr. Cooper noted a 
specific lctler from Mr Janik. 1he o"·nc:r'• rcprc1C11ta11ve. 11a11ng that the owner had no mtcrc11 m MFS rcnuining as a 
cilfl)-<wcr tenant after Mc1ro'1 lease 1ermma1cd 

:!... Puhhc ComlJKm 



METRO COUNCIL 
December 17. 1993 
Page 4 

Presiding Officer Wycn opened a public hW'intt-

Gm Wjthen. Metropolitan Family Services (MfS) eucu1ive director. in1roduced their deputy direc1or and chief 
financial officer. Bill Schaeffer. and the chair of 1hc MFS board of directors. Lynn Su.ton. 

Mr. Withers thanked the C'ounc1l for acknowledging thal circumstance!. were urgent. He thanked the Council for 
rc1uming his phone calls promp1ly and their cmpathrlic response to the situation MFS now found itself in 

Mr. Schaeffer noted Mr. P1has had mm11oncd the arhitragr'brokcr op11on. said he though• that was a really good idea. 
but said he did not intend 10 addren that issue. Hr uid lime was of 1hc cssc~ 10 MFS. He said lhcy sold 1heir 
building June 28. 1993, and immcdia1ely did an uhaustive search 10 find the best location for their clients. He: said 
after looking at 2S snes. they thought 2000 SW First was the best space for their agency. He said per the Oregonian. 
Metro was paying S9.60 per fool for emp1y •pace(s). He said per Ms. Sims' 1es1imony al this meeting. rcn1en would 
pay 514 per foot and the best option appeared 10 be for Me1ro 10 sign leases. He discussed financing ilsucs further. and 
said MFS had entered 1he lrasc in good fai1h. He said MFS had incurred costs in lime and money ncgolialing the leu: 
and dt'signing ~pace. He said the Council should he awatt thal as a social services agency. MFS was facing cu1s and 
said they could not afford 10 lose tha1 kind of money. He uid 1he new owner!. of their old building had given 1hcm 
time. but that tht'y would need to move into the building soon. He said their chcnts would suffer if they had to Mart the 
process all o\·er again. He said MFS was 1 Unncd Way Agency wnh !1.00> low-income clienls, including children and 
~niors. He asked 1he Counc1l 10 honor 1he comm11mcn1 Metro had made. 

Mr. Wuhers i.a1d he was surprised 10 hear the hutlding owner was not willing to extend their lease:. and said MFS would 
mves11ga1e that. Mr. Wuhers uid he had believed Mr. Saling had 1he authority 10 act on Me1ro's behalf. as Mr. P1has 
had alw stated at th1i m«ting He .aid It was a complete surprise to him that Mr. Saling did not ha\'c complete 
authority. 
Ms mton iaid because Metro had adven1sed the old building and used a IUI estate hmker. 1herc had been no rc~n 
for MFS 10 hchen~ 1ha1 Metro was not rcall) le.umg their rropcny She said 1( the building wu not going to he 
nailablc 10 lht'm. they needed 10 know as soon as poHihlc 

C'ounc1lor Mcfarland nked if MFS would he willing to continue the lcuc with the building owner after 2.S years. Mr 
Wnhers sa1<.I MFS would consider 1hat. hut said a 2.5 year tease per the owner was not \'Cry !tlablc. Ms Saxton ~id 
:! -~ years did 001 offer enough usurance for them to move in. M•. Sn1on said MFS wu unclear on the building 
owncr'5 true pos111on on the leaser. and the numbers used by Metro s1aff bcuusc they had nol ~ them and did not 
know what was being d1.cu•sed 

Councilor Moore and Mr. Pihu di1eussed building improvements and their cosu.. 

Councilor Devlin ukcd ho~ much 11mc Metro had before 11 had 10 gl\·e MFS an answer Mr. Schaeffer said Metro had. 
at mcnt. !ti• wccb. 

Councilor Monroe uked when MFS signed the leuc. Mr Schaeffer u1d the lcuc was •igncd October 25. 1993. Mr. 
Wnhen u1d MFS con,1dcrcd that leuc binding at that nmc. Councilor Monroe ukcd 1f MFS was told the Council 
needed 10 approve the leuc. Mr Schaeffer said MFS was no1 lold 1ha1. Mr Schaeffer said he talked wi1h Exccuti\•e 
omu-r Cuma December 8 ~-ho §.aid the Council would re\·iew the IHUCi December 9. 

Pm1dmg Officer Wycn ukcd 1f MFS would be wtlhng 10 lcuc sp.:c tn Metro Regional Center (600 NE Grand) for 
!.S ycan. M•. Su1on !ft&Jd MFS could not afford to nlk a 2.S year lcue She rcncratcd aaam the dn1r~11i1y of 
loca11on for their clients. Ms Suton 1a1d they would com1der 11 1f they had no other place 10 10 and that •uch a lcaae 



METRO COUNCIL 
December 17. 1993 
Page S 

would be dependent on us terms. She said if Metro paid all 1cnan1 improvement and build-ou1 costs. they would 
seriously entenain the offer. 

Presiding Officer Wyers said staff had to determine wha1 the com would be 10 Metro and if the rosts would adversely 
affect Metro's other functions. 

Councilor Moore asked why the building was now no longer considered ADA compatible She said ii appeared 10 be 
acceptable when Metro was housed there. 

Larry six. Pacific Fishery Management Council <PFMCI director. said PFMC was one of Metro's sm.tller exis1ing 
tenants. He said he received a lcner in September 1993 'tating that Metro might lease the whole third Ooor 10 another 
tenant. but that Metro wanted PFMC 10 stay on a.\ tenants 1f they were willing 10 relocate within the building. He said 
PFMC began to discuss MK>ther location in the building with 1cnan1 improvements with a five-year lease. He said 
PFMC hoped for a long-term lease and said they liked the location. 

Councilor Moore and Mr. Six discussed PFMC's current and proposed future space. Mr. Six said PFMC would pay 
higher rent in return for the tenant improvements as promised. 

Pan SwjO. CushllWl & Wakefield. said he worked for Paramctrix. Inc .. as their real estate broker for the past eight 
months. He said he found the 2000 SW First Avenue sile after reviewing four sues. He said 1hey sent Metro a lcucr 
asking for a five-year lei.'\C. He said he rcccwed a le11er proposal from Metro on Oc1ober 4 to lease for five years. He 
said the document never menuoncd a successful lease agreement wn dependent upon Council approval. He said they 
had already paid space planners to assess Metro's space. He said after negouations. Paramcmx and Metro signed a 
lease November IS. He uid they were 1hen told the lca'\C was dependent on board approval He said they were 
surprised, but also staled they had 10 be m the space no later than February I. 1994. He said Me1ro rq>rescnlall\cs said 
they would give them a lener contract which would commence all tenant improverncn11 and get their 1pacc ready. He 
said Paramcmx signed that document on November 24 and Metro signed it on December 6, 1993. He said Paramelm 
then gave nouce 10 their cumnl landlord. He said thal landlord now had m1eres1ed prospccuve tenants He said 
Paramctnx. Inc. acted in good fauh. 

Councilor Monroe asked whu:h Metro staff signed the lease. Mr. Swift said Mr. Saling signed the lease document. 

The Council and Mr. S'll.1f1 d1\Cus~ leuc dc1a1b funher PrcMdmg Officer asked 1f lease docurncnu wuh cuber MFS 
or Paramclnl v.crc made a\·a1lahle 10 111her Metro s111ff before 1h1s date Mr. Cooper uid he received copies of all 
documentation l>«ember 16. 

Councilor Gardner asked Mr. Sv.1fl 1r the final 11grccmcn1 con1amcd an opuon beyond the five year term Mr. Swift u1d 
1hc1r proposal and lease did contain fi\·c year op11on1 afler 1he first five year lerm. He said the documen11 also stated the 
lessor. AMCO. had 1he ngh1 001 10 renew 1hc leue Mr. Sw1f1 u1d 11 had bttn asked why 1he owner did nol con1ac1 
proposed lenants directly He u1d once 11 became iippattnt the lease would require Council arproval. he u1d they 
dircclly comacted the building owner and that the owner'1 representative said lhe owner was no1 interested in multiple 
lcilSC§ He said 1he representative was uked wh11t would happen if the lcaK were bought out 11nmedi11ely. He u1d the 
response wu that 1he owner/corporation would w1i1 for 1 sinalc 1cnan1 10 occupy the buildm& He said Paramctnx. 
Inc .. had no in1em1 m a 2. S year lease. He said very few commercial tenant& were in1em1ed in leu than 1hree years 
and also did not take spiiCC in u-" condition. 

The Council and Mr Sw1h ducuHcd leucclleuor rcla11on1 funhcr. 



METRO COUNCIL 
December 17. 1993 
Paae 6 

Presidin& Officer Wyen uked if any Olher penons poaenl wished 10 1es1ify. No other persons appeared 10 1es1ify and 
lhe public hearing wu closed. 

The Council and Mr. Pihu discuued leue details funher. Mr. Pihu said he would resun:h the building manager 
option further and provide 1 li11 or potential names 10 !he Council. He uid even in view or likely financial losses. lhe 
buildina wu nice and !he location wu good. 

Mr. Wilhen uked !he Council 10 give MFS 1 definitive answer by Dcccmber 23 on whelher Ibey could move into 
Metro Ccnler Building or not. He noted MFS had 1 S4 million budaet and had 1 board wilh well-known mcmbcn of the 
communuy. He II.id M FS would make 1 very good 1aw'll. He uked Metro 11arr 10 provide them wilh !he numben 
provided 11 lhi1 meeung. 

Mr. Swift said Parametrix, Inc., alao needed 10 know whll !he Council wan1ed 10 do u aoon u pouible. He uid !hey 
needed 10 be able 10 ex1cnd !heir current lease, and 1ha1 if they did, Ibey would have 10 pay double-rcnl 10 hold over on 
a monlh-by-monlh bui1. 

Prcaiding Officer Wycn 111d 1hc Council would consider Ibis issues again at the December 23 Council meeting for a 
time cenain 11 4:00 p.m. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION Held Punuant 10 ORS 192 66()( I Kel 10 Consul! wjlh Rmrcscot11ivc1 Re11rdjng Bal EfWe 
TranyctjQN 

Prcaiding Officer announced lhe Council would now hold an Exccu11ve Session punuanl 10 ORS 192.660(1 )(e) to consul! 
wilh representatives regarding real cslale 1ransaction1. 

The Executive Session began 11 6:SI p.m. 

Prcacn1 were: Councilon Van Bergen, McLain. Gardner, Devlin. Wyen. McFarland. Monroe. Wuhing1on and Moore; 
Elccu1ive Officer Cusma; Dcpu1y Executive Officer Dick Eng11rom; Don Rocks. Exccu1ive A11is1an1; Liu Creel. 
A11ocia1e Public Affain Spcciali11; Craig Prosser. Financial Planning Manager; and Don Carlaon. Council 
Admini11r11or. 

The Elccutive Session ended 1t 6:S6 p.m. 

Prcaidina Officer Wycn adJoumcd the special mcctina 11 6:S6 p.m. 

Respectfully 1ubmiued. 

/1. 1£(l'ilf t{{h '--
Paulctlc Allen 
Clerk of lhc Council 
MCMIN93.3SI 


